
TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE 

Board of Selectmen Agenda 
September 8, 2022 @ 6:00 PM 

VILLAGE FIRE STATION 
32 North Street 

This is an in-person meeting but the public may join in Zoom webinar format 
Join by computer or mobile device and click on: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85867002094   
or go to ZOOM and enter the webinar ID: 858 6700 2094 

By phone 1(929) 205 6099 US 

1. Call to Order.

2. Approve the August 25, 2022, selectmen meeting minutes.

3. Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board of
Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.)

4. Public hearing for a new Liquor License submitted by HAMASA LLC, d/b/a 1802
House Bed and Breakfast.

5. Consider approving a renewal Liquor and Special Amusement Application
submitted by Breakwater Inn & Spa.

6. Authorize the warrant for the November ballot.

7. Certification of the referendum questions for the November town meeting warrant.

8. Authorize the warrant for a special town meeting on September 22, 2022.

9. Street Opening permit by Labbe Excavating Inc for South Main Street.

10. Discussion of correspondence with Kennebunkport Heritage Housing Trust
regarding affordable housing goals and potential zoning amendments.

11. Presentation by Werner Gilliam regarding form-based code zoning.

12. Consider lease purchase of ladder truck.

13. Award bid for the replacement of heating system at Village Fire Station.

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85867002094
https://zoom.us/join


14. Appoint Jamie Mitchell to the Recreation Committee.  

15. Consider writing off bad debt for fuel sales owed by Chris Perkins. 

16. Accept donations dedicated to the nurse’s general account: 

a. $50.00 from an Anonymous donor 

b. $50.00 from Audrey Lakin 

17. Other Business.   

a. Discussion of Town Meeting date.  

18. Approve the September 8, 2022, Treasurer’s Warrant. 

19. Executive Session per (MRSA 1, §405-6C) for discussion of consideration of real 
estate. 

20. Adjournment.  



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Town of Kennebunkport 
Board of Selectmen Meeting 

August 25, 2022 
3:00 PM  

MINUTES 

Selectmen attending:  Ed Hutchins, Mike Weston, Allen Daggett, and Jon Dykstra. Absent 
Sheila Matthews-Bull. 

Others attending: Robin Phillips, Melina Anderson, and David James. 

1. Call to Order
Selectman Hutchins called the meeting to order at 3:00 PM.

2. Approve the July 14, 2022, meeting minutes.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Weston to approve the July
14, 2022, selectmen meeting minutes. Voted: 4-0. Motion passed.

3. Public Forum. (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board of
Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.)

David James stated he wanted to discuss the future of the KRA with the Selectmen,
and he may set up individual times.

Melinda Anderson questioned why the meeting wasn’t recorded. Ed explained that
during the months of July and August, the second meeting is a warrant signing
meeting and is not recorded as it is a short meeting. He and the other selectmen
reiterated this is normal per their course of business each year.

Robin Phillips asked how she could change the time of year the annual town meeting
is held each year. Robin stated that many people couldn’t attend a Saturday meeting
in mid-June due to work and family commitments as it is a very busy time of year.
When she was campaigning for office, many people brought this concern up. Allen
stated that other people have complained that during March, they are away in warmer
climates and can’t vote. The Town Manager explained that the Town Meeting
changed with the change in the fiscal year. Originally the Town had a calendar fiscal
year, and the meeting was held in March. When the Town changed to a July – June
fiscal year, it moved the Town meeting to June. The election process coincides with
the State election/ballot and also the School budget validation process.

Melinda agreed that we need more participation, and a budget process in June limits
who can attend.

Item 2



July 28, 2022, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 2 

David James questioned whether more people would attend in March versus June.  
He stated that people come when there is an issue. 

The Selectmen stated that if a proposal was brought forward, they would investigate.  
As a citizen, Robin has the ability to bring a question forward to the voters through the 
petition process.    

4. Discussion of whether to hold a special town meeting or place a question on the
November ballot requesting permission for the placement of the Economic
Development Administration 20-year mortgage on Cape Porpoise Pier as part of
the grant requirements.

Allen stated that we should have a town meeting to explain the question to the people.
Jon agreed and stated that due to the use of the word mortgage, people might think
we are borrowing funds. David James stated that he supported a town meeting so that
people could discuss the particulars of the case. Robin questioned why people
couldn’t just read the question and learn about it, in order to vote on the November
ballot.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to hold a special
town meeting on September 22, 2022, at the Village Fire Station at 6 PM. Voted: 4-0.
Motion passed.

5. Other Business.

There was no other business.

6. Approve the July 28, 2022, Treasurer’s Warrant.

Motion by Selectman Dykstra, seconded by Selectman Weston to approve the August
25, 2022, Treasurer’s Warrant. Voted:  4-0. Motion passed.

7. Adjournment.

Motion by Selectman Weston seconded by Selectman Dykstra to adjourn. Voted:  4-
0. Motion passed. Meeting adjourned at 4:00 PM.

Submitted by,  
Laurie Smith, 
Town Manager 



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



KENNEBUNKPORT TOWN CLERK 

P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine, 04046 • Tel. (207) 967-4243 

To: Laurie Smith, Town Manager 
Board of Selectmen 

Fr: Tracey O’Roak, Town Clerk 

Dt: August 31, 2022 

Re: Liquor License and Special Amusement Applications 

We have received the following applications for Liquor Licenses and Special 
Amusement renewal applications:  

• 1802 House – new application for liquor license (new ownership). This
requires a public hearing. Notice was posted in the Kennebunk Post.

• Breakwater Inn & Spa – renewal liquor and special amusement permit

Staff have reviewed the applications and provided approval for this license and, 
therefore, I recommend approval. 

Items 4 & 5



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 4





























 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 5





















 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



1 

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT 

WARRANT 
SPECIAL TOWN MEETING 

NOVEMBER 8, 2022 

State of Maine County of York, SS 

To: Rebecca Nolette, Constable of the Town of Kennebunkport, in the County of York, State of 
Maine. 

GREETINGS: 

You are hereby required in the name of the State of Maine to notify and warn the voters of the 
Town of Kennebunkport in said County of the Town Meeting described in this warrant.  

To the voters of Kennebunkport: You are hereby notified that a Special Town Meeting of this 
municipality will be held at the Village Fire Station, 32 North Street on Tuesday, November 8, 
2022, at 8:00 a.m. for the purpose of acting on Articles numbered one (1) and one a (1a) as set out 
below.  The polls for voting on Article 1 shall be opened immediately after the election of the 
Moderator at 8:00 a.m. on November 8, 2022, and shall close at 8:00 p.m.  While the polls are 
open, the Registrar of Voters will hold office hours to accept the registration of any person eligible 
to vote, to accept new enrollments, and to make any necessary corrections or changes to any names 
or addresses on the voting list. 

ARTICLE 1a.  To choose a Moderator to preside at said meeting. 

ARTICLE 1.  To vote on the following referendum questions:  

QUESTION 1 
AMENDMENT TO THE KENNEBUNK RIVER ORDINANCE 

Shall an ordinance entitled “November 8, 2022, Amendment to the Kennebunk River Ordinance” 
be enacted? (A true copy of which is on file in the Town Clerk’s Office and is incorporated by 
reference.) 

[Note of Explanation: This amendment clarifies the definitions of Commercial Vessel and 
Commercial Fishing.] 

Item 6



2 

QUESTION 2 
AMENDMENT TO THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 

Shall an ordinance entitled “November 8, 2022, Amendment to the Administrative Code” be 
enacted? (A true copy of which is on file in the Town Clerk’s Office and is incorporated by 
reference.) 

[Note of Explanation: This amendment removes the qualification that the Town Meeting 
Moderator be a registered voter of the Town and includes RSU #21 Directors as elected officials 
of the Town that may be removed from office by the voters.] 

QUESTION 3 
AMENDMENT TO THE SHELLFISH CONSERVATION ORDINANCE 

Shall an ordinance entitled “November 8, 2022, Amendment to the Shellfish Conservation 
Ordinance” be enacted? (A true copy of which is on file in the Town Clerk’s Office and is 
incorporated by reference.) 

[Note of Explanation: This amendment requires applicants for a Shellfish License to appear in 
person in the Town Clerk’s Office and clarifies that diggers under 12 years of age can dig without 
their own license when accompanied by an adult holding a valid recreational Shellfish License.] 

QUESTION 4 
AMENDMENT TO THE LAND USE ORDINANCE  

REGARDING RESIDENTIAL RENTAL ACCOMODATIONS (ROOMERS) 

Shall an ordinance entitled “November 8, 2022, Amendment to the Land Use Ordinance regarding 
residential rental accommodations (roomers)” be enacted? (A true copy of which is on file in the 
Town Clerk’s Office and is incorporated by reference.) 

[Note of Explanation: This amendment would revise the way residential rental accommodations 
(roomers) are reviewed, approved and denied. All other performance and appeal standards will 
remain unchanged.] 



3 

QUESTION 5 
ACCEPTANCE OF THE KENNEBUNKPORT 2030 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

Shall the “2022 Update to the Comprehensive Plan for the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine” as 
submitted by the Town of Kennebunkport’s Growth Planning Committee be adopted? (A true copy 
of which is on file in the Town Clerk’s Office and is incorporated by reference.) 

[Note of Explanation: A Comprehensive Plan is used to guide the Town in its effort to develop 
and implement its local growth management program. The Land Use Ordinance, by law, must be 
consistent with a comprehensive plan adopted by the voters. Adoption of this article will update 
the existing Comprehensive Plan adopted by the Town in 1996 and updated in 2006, 2007, 2008, 
2009, 2010 & 2011.] 

HEREOF FAIL NOT TO MAKE DUE SERVICE of this Warrant and a return of your doing 
thereon, at a time and place of said meeting. 

GIVEN UNDER OUR HANDS this 8th  day of September 2022, Kennebunkport, Maine. 

______________________ ____________________________ 
Edward W. Hutchins, II Jon D. Dykstra 

____________________________ ____________________________ 
Allen A. Daggett Sheila W. Matthews-Bull 

____________________________ 
D. Michael Weston

A majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine 

A true attested copy of the warrant attest: 

___________________________________ 
Tracey O’Roak, Town Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



CERTIFICATION OF  
PROPOSED ORDINANCE REVISION 

TO:  Tracey O’Roak, the Town Clerk of the Town of Kennebunkport.  In the name of the State of 
Maine, we hereby certify that the Ordinance entitled: 

"Proposed Revision to the Kennebunk River Ordinance" 

attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true copy of the Ordinance proposed for enactment at the Special 
Town Meeting of the Town of Kennebunkport to be held on November 8, 2022. 

Dated this 8th day of September 2022, at Kennebunkport, Maine. 

    ____________________________       __________________________ 
    Jon D. Dykstra       Sheila A. Matthews-Bull 

    ________________________________       ______________________________ 
     Edward W. Hutchins       Allen A. Daggett 

____________________________ 
D. Michael Weston

A majority of the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Kennebunkport 

Item 7



Exhibit A 

Revisions to Part I. General Ordinances 
Chapter 80. Kennebunk River 

Section 80-10: Definitions  

Vessel              
The word “vessel” as used herein shall include boats of all sizes powered by sail, 
machinery or hand, scows, dredges, lobster, crab and shellfish cars, and craft of 
any kind. 

Commercial Vessel 
A vessel from which the owner obtains in excess of 67% of his earned 
income.  The definition of Commercial Vessel includes Commercial Fishing 
Vessel, unless otherwise indicated. A vessel that is primarily used for commercial 
fishing. 

Commercial Fishing Vessel             
A vessel from which the owner obtains in excess of 67% of his earned income 
from commercial fishing. Commercial fishing is defined as fishing in which the 
fish harvested, either in whole or in part, are intended to enter commerce or enter 
commerce through sale, barter, or trade. 

Commercial Fishing 
Commercial fishing is defined as fishing in which the fish harvested, either in 
whole or in part, are intended to enter commerce or enter commerce through sale, 
barter, or trade. 

. 



CERTIFICATION OF  
PROPOSED ORDINANCE REVISION 

TO:  Tracey O’Roak, the Town Clerk of the Town of Kennebunkport.  In the name of the State of 
Maine, we hereby certify that the Ordinance entitled: 

"Proposed Revision to the Administrative Code" 

attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true copy of the Ordinance proposed for enactment at the Special 
Town Meeting of the Town of Kennebunkport to be held on November 8, 2022. 

Dated this 8th day of September 2022, at Kennebunkport, Maine. 

    ____________________________       __________________________ 
    Jon D. Dykstra       Sheila A. Matthews-Bull 

    ________________________________       ______________________________ 
     Edward W. Hutchins       Allen A. Daggett 

____________________________ 
D. Michael Weston

A majority of the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Kennebunkport 



Exhibit A 
 

Revisions to Part I. General Ordinances 
Chapter 5. Administrative Code 

Article I. Elected Officers 
 

§ 5-1 Town Meeting Moderator.  
A. Election. Each Town Meeting shall elect a Moderator as prescribed by statute.  

B. Qualification. The Town Meeting Moderator shall be a registered voter of the Town.  

B. Duties. In addition to the duties prescribed by statute, the Town Meeting Moderator shall 
appoint a sufficient number of members to the Budget Board to constitute a Board 
consisting of 12 members, the terms of four members expiring every three years.  

§ 5-3 Removal.  
Any elected official of the Town of Kennebunkport, including RSU #21 Directors, may be 
removed from elective office by the voters of the Town of Kennebunkport in the following 
manner: 

A. A number of voters equal to at least 10% of votes cast in the Town at the last gubernatorial 
election, but in no case less than 10, may present a written petition, which petition shall 
fully set forth the reasons therefor, to those members of the Board of Selectmen having no 
conflict of interest in the subject matter of said petition;  

B. In or within 15 days after the receipt of such petition, said Selectmen shall hold a public 
hearing on said petition, which hearing shall be restricted and limited to presentation and 
discussion of those matters set forth in the petition. Said public hearing shall be conducted 
by said Selectmen having no interest in the subject matter of the petition in accordance with 
rules of conduct and guidelines established by and set forth by them at the outset of the 
hearing;  

C. Notice for the aforesaid public hearing shall be given in the same manner as is provided for 
and established with regard to notice for a Town Meeting;  

D. In or within 15 days after the aforesaid public hearing, a Town Meeting shall be called by 
the said Selectmen and a vote by secret ballot shall be taken; and  

E. In the event of an affirmative vote for such removal, such vote shall take effect and such 
removal shall be effective as of recording thereof in the record of the meeting, subject to 
such recount of the vote as may be requested and provided by statute. 



CERTIFICATION OF  
PROPOSED ORDINANCE REVISION 

 
 
 
TO:  Tracey O’Roak, the Town Clerk of the Town of Kennebunkport.  In the name of the State of 
Maine, we hereby certify that the Ordinance entitled: 
 

"Proposed Revision to the Shellfish Conservation Ordinance" 
 
attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true copy of the Ordinance proposed for enactment at the Special 
Town Meeting of the Town of Kennebunkport to be held on November 8, 2022. 
 
Dated this 8th day of September 2022, at Kennebunkport, Maine. 
 
 
 
    ____________________________       __________________________ 
    Jon D. Dykstra       Sheila A. Matthews-Bull 
 
 
 
    ________________________________       ______________________________ 
     Edward W. Hutchins       Allen A. Daggett  
 
 

____________________________ 
D. Michael Weston 

 
 

A majority of the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Kennebunkport 



Exhibit A 
 

Revisions to Part I. General Ordinances 
Chapter 127. Shellfish Conservation 

 
§ 127-5 Municipal shellfish digging license required.  
It is unlawful for any person to dig or take shellfish from the shores and flats of this municipality 
without having a current license issued by this municipality as provided by this chapter. 

A. Designation, scope and qualifications. 

(1) Resident recreational shellfish license. The license is available to residents and real estate 
taxpayers of this municipality and entitles the holder to dig and take no more than one peck 
of shellfish in any one day for the use of himself and his family.  

(2) Nonresident recreational shellfish license. The license is available to any person not a 
resident of this municipality and entitles the holder to dig and take not more than one peck 
of shellfish in any one day for the use of himself and his family.  

(3) Resident commercial shellfish license. The license is available to residents of this 
municipality and entitles the holder to dig and take no more than the amount of shellfish as 
recommended by the Shellfish Conservation Committee and approved by the Board of 
Selectmen in any one day, unassisted only. Commercial license holders must keep a daily 
log of clams harvested. This license shall be revoked if the license holder ceases to reside in 
the municipality.  

(4) Nonresident commercial shellfish license. The license is available to nonresidents of this 
municipality and entitles the holder to dig and take no more than the amount of shellfish as 
recommended by the Shellfish Conservation Committee and approved by the Board of 
Selectmen in any one day, unassisted only. Commercial license holders must keep a daily 
log of clams harvested.  

(5) Daily recreational shellfish license. The license is available to residents and nonresidents of 
this municipality and entitles the holder to dig and take no more than one peck of shellfish 
in any one day for the use of himself and his family. The license is good only for the date 
stated on the license.  

(6) License must be signed. The licensee must sign the license to make it valid.  

B. Application procedure. Any person who would like to obtain a license may must apply in 
person to with the Town Clerk for the licenses required by this chapter on forms provided 
by the municipality. 



(1) Contents of application. The application must be in the form of an affidavit and must 
contain the applicant's name, current address, birth date, height, weight, signature and 
whatever information the municipality may require.  

(2) Misrepresentation. Any person who gives false information on a license application will 
cause said license to become invalid and void.  

C. Fees. The fees for the licenses shall be set by the municipal officers upon the approval of 
the Commissioner of the Department of Marine Resources and must accompany in full the 
application for the respective license. The Town Clerk shall pay all fees received to the 
Town Treasurer. Fees received for shellfish licensing shall be used by the Town for 
shellfish management, conservation and enforcement.  

D. Limitation of diggers. Clam resources vary in density and size distribution from year to year 
and over the limited soft-clam-producing area of the Town. It is essential that the Town 
carefully husband its shellfish resources. Following the annual review of the Town's clam 
resources, its size distribution, abundance, and the Warden's reports, as required by § 127-3, 
the Shellfish Conservation Committee in consultation with the Department of Marine 
Resources Area Biologist will determine whether limiting commercial or recreational 
shellfish licenses is an appropriate shellfish management option for the following year. 

(1) Prior to January 1, the Committee shall report its findings and document recommendations 
for the allocation of commercial and recreational licenses to be made available for the 
following license year to the Commissioner of Marine Resources for concurrence.  

(2) After receiving approval of proposed license allocations from the Commissioner of Marine 
Resources and prior to January 1, the Shellfish Conservation Committee shall notify the 
Town Clerk, in writing, of the number and allocation of shellfish licenses to be issued.  

(3) Notice of the number of licenses to be issued and the procedure for application shall be 
published in a trade or industry publication, or in a newspaper or combination of 
newspapers with general circulation that the municipal officers consider effective in 
reaching persons affected, not less than 10 days prior to the period of issuance. This 
information shall also be posted in the municipal offices until the period concludes.  

(4) The Town Clerk shall issue licenses to residents and nonresidents as allocated [Subsection 
D(1)] from mid-April and until June 30, after which licenses shall be issued without regard 
to residency on a first-come, first-served basis. [Amended 11-3-2020]  

E. License expiration date. Each license issued under authority of this chapter expires at 
midnight on December 31 next following date of issuance. Each daily license issued under 
the authority of this chapter shall be valid only for the date stated on the license.  



F. Reciprocal harvesting privileges. Licensees from any other municipality cooperating with 
this municipality on a joint shellfish management program may harvest shellfish according 
to the terms of this license.  

G. License fee waiver. Recreational shellfish license fees will be waived for residents 65 years 
or older and 12 years or younger. 

H. Children 12 years and younger do not require a license but must be accompanied by a 
parent or guardian who holds a current Kennebunkport recreational shellfish license. The 
total combined daily limit for adults and children is one peck per license. 

H.I. A shellfish license is not available to anyone whose municipal or state shellfish license is 
under suspension or who has been convicted of violating Maine marine statutes or state wildlife 
statutes within a prior twenty-four-month period or who has a valid commercial license in 
another Maine municipality.  

I. J. Suspension/revocation. A shellfish license issued under this chapter is subject to suspension 
as follows: 

(1) In cases where a court enforcement proceeding is brought under this chapter or state law. 

(a) In the case of a first court judgment finding any violation, an automatic suspension of 60 
days;  

(b) In the case of a second court judgment finding any violation against the same licensee, an 
automatic revocation of the existing license, and the person found in violation is prohibited 
from reapplying for a license under this chapter for one year.  

(2) In cases where the Shellfish Warden believes that a licensee has violated this chapter, he 
may give notice to the licensee of such belief. If, after providing the licensee with an 
opportunity to rebut any evidence he has, the Shellfish Warden concludes that a violation 
has occurred, he may issue a notice of suspension not to exceed 30 days. 

(a) A licensee who has received a notice of suspension may appeal to the Board of Selectmen 
by filing a written request with the Town Clerk within seven days of the day the Shellfish 
Warden's decision is rendered. Upon filing the request, the suspension is stayed pending the 
Board's decision.  

(b) The Board of Selectmen shall hear the appeal as soon as practicable and shall provide the 
appellant with at least seven days' written notice of hearing. It shall hear all the evidence 
and decide whether to uphold or reverse the decision of the Shellfish Warden. The rules of 
evidence do not apply.  



CERTIFICATION OF  
PROPOSED ORDINANCE REVISION 

 
 
 
TO:  Tracey O’Roak, the Town Clerk of the Town of Kennebunkport.  In the name of the State of 
Maine, we hereby certify that the Ordinance entitled: 
 

"Proposed Revision to the Land Use Ordinance regarding roomers" 
 
attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true copy of the Ordinance proposed for enactment at the Special 
Town Meeting of the Town of Kennebunkport to be held on November 8, 2022. 
 
Dated this 8th day of September 2022, at Kennebunkport, Maine. 
 
 
 
    ____________________________       __________________________ 
    Jon D. Dykstra       Sheila A. Matthews-Bull 
 
 
 
    ________________________________       ______________________________ 
     Edward W. Hutchins       Allen A. Daggett  
 
 

____________________________ 
D. Michael Weston 

 
 

A majority of the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Kennebunkport 
  



Exhibit A 
 

Part II – Zoning Ordinances 
Chapter 240 - Land Use 

§ 240-4.3 Village Residential Zone.  

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to 
Site Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to Zoning 
Board of Appeals Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Animal husbandry 

Agriculture Cemetery Home occupation 

Essential services Church Residential rental accommodation 

Farm stand Community building 
 

Single-family dwelling Community use 
 

Storage and repair of fishing 
equipment 

Elder-care facility 
 

Parking of motor vehicles limited to 
any publicly owned lot in excess of 2 
acres in size, with frontage on and 
access from a state-controlled 
highway. The maximum number of 
parking spaces for this use may not 
exceed 150, and there shall be no bus 
or large recreational vehicle parking 
on the lot. Further, with the 
exception of road frontage, dense 
vegetative buffering, a minimum of 6 
feet in height, is required beginning 
at the property line and extending 
inward for a distance of 10 feet. 

Golf courses in existence since 
January 1, 2008 

 

Parking, temporary overflow public Library 
 

Timber harvesting Multiplex 
 

Timber management Museum 
 

Two-family dwelling Park 
 

Residential rental accommodation  
 

 

School *See § 240-7.1J 

 

 



Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to 
Site Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to Zoning 
Board of Appeals Review 

 

§ 240-4.4 Village Residential East Zone.  

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to 
Site Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to Zoning 
Board of Appeals Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Animal husbandry 

Agriculture Cemetery Home occupation 

Essential services Church Residential rental accommodation 

Farm stand Community building 
 

Single-family dwelling Community use 
 

Storage and repair of fishing 
equipment 

Elder-care facility 
 

Timber harvesting Hotel and motel expansion 
 

Timber management Library 
 

Two-family dwelling 

Residential rental accommodation 

Multiplex 
 

 

Museum 
 

 

Park 
 

 

School *See § 240-7.1J 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

§ 240-4.5 Dock Square Zone.  
[Amended 6-8-2021]  

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site Plan 
Review* 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment** Child-care center 

Essential services Bed-and-breakfast Handcrafts 

Single-family dwelling Boatyard Home occupation 

Storage and repair of fishing 
equipment 

Club Residential rental accommodation 

Two-family dwelling 

Residential rental 
accommodation 

Commercial center 
 

 

Financial institution 
 

 

Hotel 
 

 

Inn 
 

 

Marina 
 

 

Motel 
 

 

Multiplex 
 

 

Park 
 

 

Parking, commercial 
 

 

Professional and business offices 
 

 

Public hospitality facility 
 

 

Residential mixed use 
 

 

Restaurant 
 

 

Retail business 
 

 

Ship chandlery 
 

 

Theater 
 



Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site Plan 
Review* 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals Review 

NOTES: 
 

* Exceptions to the requirement for Planning Board Site Plan 
Review Approval are set forth in § 490-10.2B(3). 

** See § 490-7.1J. 

 
 

§ 240-4.6 Riverfront Zone.  

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site Plan 
Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Child-care center 

Agriculture Bed-and-breakfast Handcrafts 

Essential services Boatyard Home occupation 

Farm stand Club Residential rental accommodation 

Single-family dwelling Commercial center 
 

Storage and repair of fishing 
equipment 

Community building 
 

Two-family dwelling 

Residential rental 
accommodation 

Community use 
 

 

Financial institution 
 

 

Fish processing 
 

 

Hotel 
 

 

Inn 
 

 

Library 
 

 

Marina 
 

 

Marine transport services 
 

 

Motel 
 

 

Multiplex 
 

 

Museum 
 



Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site Plan 
Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals Review 

 

Park 
 

 

Professional and business offices 
 

 

Residential mixed use 
 

 

Restaurant 
 

 

Retail business 
 

 

School 
 

 

Ship chandlery 
 

 

 

Theater *See § 240-7.1J 

 
 
 
§ 240-4.7 Cape Arundel Zone.  

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to 
Site Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to Zoning 
Board of Appeals Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Home occupation 

Agriculture Cemetery Residential rental accommodations 

Essential services Church 
 

Farm stand Museum 
 

Library Commercial center 
 

Park Community building 
 

Single-family dwelling 
  

Storage and repair of fishing 
equipment 

  

Timber harvesting 
  

Timber management 
  

Two-family dwelling 

Residential rental 
accommodations 

 

*See § 240-7.1J 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
§ 240-4.8 Goose Rocks Zone.  

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to 
Site Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to Zoning 
Board of Appeals Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Child-care center 

Agriculture Cemetery Home occupation 

Essential services Club Residential rental accommodations 

Farm stand Community building 
 

Public hospitality facility, 
temporary 

Community use 
 

Single-family dwelling Library 
 

Storage and repair of fishing 
equipment 

Museum 
 

Timber harvesting Park 
 

Timber management 
  

Two-family dwelling 

Residential rental 
accommodations 

 

*See § 240-7.1J 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 



 

§ 240-4.9 Cape Porpoise East and Cape Porpoise West Zones.  

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to 
Site Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to Zoning 
Board of Appeals Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Home occupation 

Agriculture Boatyard Residential rental accommodations 

Essential services Commercial marina 
 

Farm stand Community use 
 

Single-family dwelling Elder-care facility 
 

Storage and repair of fishing 
equipment 

Fish processing 
 

Timber harvesting Library 
 

Timber management Museum 
 

Two-family dwelling 

Residential rental 
accommodations 

Park 
 

 

Residential mixed use 
 

 

Ship chandlery *See § 240-7.1J 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

§ 240-4.10 Cape Porpoise Square Zone.  

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site Plan 
Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Child-care center 

Agriculture Automobile repair shop Handcrafts 

Essential services Automobile service station Home occupation 

Farm stand Bed-and-breakfast Residential rental accommodation 

Single-family dwelling Boatyard 
 

Storage and repair of fishing 
equipment 

Church 
 

Two-family dwelling 

Residential rental 
accommodation 

Club 
 

 

Commercial center 
 

 

Commercial marina 
 

 

Community building 
 

 

Community use 
 

 

Financial institution 
 

 

Fish processing 
 

 

Inn 
 

 

Library 
 

 

Multiplex 
 

 

Museum 
 

 

Park 
 

 

Professional and business offices 
 

 

Residential mixed use 
 

 

Restaurant 
 

 

Retail business 
 



Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site Plan 
Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals Review 

 

School 
 

 

Ship chandlery 
 

 

Theater *See § 240-7.1J 

 

§ 240-4.11 Free Enterprise Zone.  

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site Plan 
Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Child-care center 

Agriculture Automobile-oriented business Handcrafts 

Animal husbandry Automobile repair shop Home occupation 

Essential services Automobile service station Residential rental accommodation 

Farm stand Bed-and-breakfast 
 

Manufactured housing Boatyard 
 

Single-family dwelling Campground 
 

Storage and repair of fishing 
equipment 

Cemetery 
 

Timber harvesting Club 
 

Timber management Commercial center 
 

Two-family dwelling Commercial complex 
 

Parking, temporary overflow 
public 

Residential rental 
accommodation 

Commercial recreation, indoor 
 

 

Commercial recreation, outdoor 
 

 

Community building 
 

 

Community use 
 

 

Elder-care facility 
 

 

Extractive Industry 
 



Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site Plan 
Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Review 

 

Financial institution 
 

 

Fish processing 
 

 

Funeral home 
 

 

Golf course 
 

 

Health institution 
 

 

Hotel 
 

 

Inn 
 

 

Kennel 
 

 

Library 
 

 

Manufacturing 
 

 

Marina 
 

 

Mobile home park 
 

 

Motel 
 

 

Museum 
 

 

Nursing home 
 

 

Park 
 

 

Parking, commercial 
 

 

Professional and business offices 
 

 

Public utilities 
 

 

Residential mixed use 
 

 

Restaurant 
 

 

Retail business 
 

 

School 
 

 

Ship chandlery 
 

 

Theater 
 



Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site Plan 
Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Review 

 

Veterinary clinic 
 

 

Warehouse 
 

 

Wireless telecommunications facilities 
 

 

Wholesaling *See § 240-7.1J 

 

§ 240-4.12 Farm and Forest Zone.  

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site Plan 
Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Child-care center 

Agriculture Bed-and-breakfast Handcrafts 

Animal husbandry Boatyard Home occupation 

Essential services Campground Residential rental accommodation 

Farm stand Cemetery 
 

Manufactured housing Club 
 

Single-family dwelling Commercial Recreation, outdoor 
 

Storage and repair of fishing 
equipment 

Community building 
 

Timber harvesting Community use 
 

Timber management Extractive industry 
 

Two-family dwelling 

Residential rental 
accommodation 

Fish processing 
 

 

Funeral home 
 

 

Golf course 
 

 

Health institution 
 

 

Hotel 
 

 

Inn 
 



Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site Plan 
Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals Review 

 

Kennel 
 

 

Library 
 

 

Manufacturing 
 

 

Mobile home park 
 

 

Motel 
 

 

Museum 
 

 

Nursing Home 
 

 

Park 
 

 

Professional and business offices 
 

 

Public utilities 
 

 

Restaurant 
 

 

Retail business 
 

 

Theater 
 

 

Veterinary clinic 
 

 

Warehouse 
 

 

Wholesaling *See § 240-7.1J 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



§ 240-7.14 Residential rental accommodations.  
 

C. Approval; permit; appeal. 

(1) Approval to operate a residential rental accommodation shall be granted by the Code Enforcement 
Officer upon a successful property inspection and complete permit application. Zoning Board of 
Appeals contingent upon a successful property inspection by the Code Enforcement Officer subject to 
Subsection B above. Following such approval, the Code Enforcement Officer shall issue a permit. Such 
permit shall be issued to the property owner only and is subject to sufficient evidence that the property 
is owner occupied.  

(2) A permit to operate a residential rental accommodation shall expire upon a change in ownership or a 
change in owner residency status.  

(3) A single-family dwelling approved to accommodate roomers prior to November 8, 2016, may continue 
to operate under the conditions of approval as specified by the Zoning Board of Appeals, including the 
Land Use Ordinance requirements and restrictions in effect at the time of such approval.  

(4) Permit shall be revoked upon confirmation of a second confirmed noise or barking dog citation related 
to use of a dwelling unit by a roomer. Permit shall also be revoked upon any confirmed violation of the 
requirements contained within the definition of residential rental accommodation located in Article 2. 
Any such permit having been revoked shall not be reissued to the same property owner within one year 
(365 days) from the date of revocation, which shall require Code Enforcement Officer reapproval 
Zoning Board of Appeals reapproval.  

(5) An appeal from any decision of the Code Enforcement Officer related to the issuance, non-issuance, 
suspension or revocation of a residential rental accommodation permit shall be taken by an aggrieved 
party to the Zoning Board of Appeals within 30 days of the decision.  

 



CERTIFICATION OF  
PROPOSED ORDINANCE REVISION 

TO:  Tracey O’Roak, the Town Clerk of the Town of Kennebunkport.  In the name of the State of 
Maine, we hereby certify that the Ordinance entitled: 

"2022 Update to the Comprehensive Plan for the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine" 

A copy of the 2022 update to the Comprehensive Plan proposed for approval at the Special Town 
Meeting of the Town of Kennebunkport to be held on November 8, 2022 is on file at Town Hall, 
Graves Memorial Library, Cape Porpoise Library and on the Town’s website: 
www.kennebunkportme.gov.  

Dated this 8th day of September 2022, at Kennebunkport, Maine. 

    ____________________________       __________________________ 
    Jon D. Dykstra       Sheila A. Matthews-Bull 

    ________________________________       ______________________________ 
     Edward W. Hutchins       Allen A. Daggett 

____________________________ 
D. Michael Weston

A majority of the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Kennebunkport 

http://www.kennebunkportme.gov/


 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT 

WARRANT 
SPECIAL TOWN MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 22, 2022 

State of Maine County of York, SS 

To: Rebecca Nolette, Constable of the Town of Kennebunkport, in the County of York, State of 
Maine. 

GREETINGS: 

You are hereby required in the name of the State of Maine to notify and warn the voters of the 
Town of Kennebunkport in said County of the Town Meeting described in this warrant.  

To the voters of Kennebunkport:  You are hereby notified that a Special Town Meeting of this 
municipality will be held at the Village Fire Station, 32 North Street on Thursday, September 22nd, 
2022, at 6:00 p.m. for the purpose of acting on Articles numbered one (1) and one a (1a) as set out 
below.   

ARTICLE 1a.  To choose a Moderator to preside at said meeting. 

ARTICLE 1.  To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to execute a 20-
year first priority mortgage lien on the Cape Porpoise Pier property (York County Registry of 
Deeds Book 3122, Page 6) in favor of the federal Economic Development Administration as 
required for the Cape Porpoise Pier reconstruction project? 

HEREOF FAIL NOT TO MAKE DUE SERVICE of this Warrant and a return of your doing 
thereon, at a time and place of said meeting. 

GIVEN UNDER OUR HANDS this 8th day of September 2022, Kennebunkport, Maine. 

______________________ ____________________________ 
Edward W. Hutchins, II Jon D. Dykstra 

____________________________ ____________________________ 
Allen A. Daggett Sheila W. Matthews-Bull 

____________________________ 
D. Michael Weston

A majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine 

A true attested copy of the warrant attest: 

__________________________________ 
Tracey O’Roak, Town Clerk 

Item 8



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



KENNEBUNKPORT WASTEWATER DEPARTMENT

25R School Street, P.O. Box 1038, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 
Tel: (207) 967-2245 Fax: (207) 967-5372 

MEMORANDUM 

Dt: August 31st, 2022 

To: Laurie Smith 

Fr: Chris Simeoni, Director of Public Works 

Re: Request for Street Opening Permit by Labbe Excavating for South Main St 

On August 31st, the Public Works Department received a request from Labbe 
Excavating for a street opening permit for South Main Street. Labbe Excavating is 
currently contracted to complete the site work and water service tie in for the new Ivy 
Lane Subdivision off Spring Valley Road. The extent of the work is to cut a 6’ wide 
section of pavement and trench across South Main Street to access the water line on 
the opposite side of the road. 

Labbe Excavating is requesting to perform this work as early as the week of 
September 12th. They have submitted a bond in the amount of $2000.00 as required 
by ordinance. (Please see attached documents.)  After properly backfilling and 
compacting, Labbe Excavating will be required to repair the pavement cut by adding 
base asphalt material to the same elevation as the existing pavement. This road is 
already in the paving plan to be overlayed this fall. Labbe Excavating will keep the 
work to one lane at a time and will be responsible for their own traffic control. No street 
closure will be necessary. 

It is my recommendation to authorize the street opening permit with the conditions 
noted above. 

Item 9







 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 10



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Village Parcel 
Next Steps: 
Achieving 
Community 
Goals with 
Form Based 
Code Design

Item 11



What is a 
Form Based-
Code?

• One of the most effective land use tools for
shaping pedestrian-scaled, mixed-use and
active urban environments.

• Often used with “New Urbanism”, village-
style development, or neo-traditional
planning.

• Places a greater emphasis on the
arrangement and form of buildings.

• Represent an innovative response to
undesirable urban sprawl.

• Also often referred to as Form Based Design



Why a Form-
Based Code?

• Kennebunkport’s vibrant walkable village area that
compliments many town goals cannot be built
under current zoning .

• Form based code is an alternative to conventional
zoning that has been in use since the early 1970’s.

• It regulates the form, as well as the uses and is often
used to replicate and enhance the unique character
of communities, that support mixed uses and
provide for varied housing options.

• Uses pictures, diagrams, and simple language to
describe the look of  a community that residents
find desirable

• Represents a commitment to creating a vibrant
walkable extension of the village.



What about Current Zoning?

• Single use zoning, or Euclidean Zoning is the dominant
system of zoning in North America.

• Was initially created and adopted to ensure that suburban
development wasn’t affected by fumes from factories or
commercial strip noise.

• Segregating uses has led to expansive neighborhoods,
made up of primarily single-family homes. In the process of
segregating uses it became impossible to build new
neighborhoods with vibrant walkable mixed-use areas that
make up historic villages and towns.



Form Based Code 
has 5 Elements

• Map: Plan of the area that designates areas where
standards will apply.

• Public Standards: Elements of the public realm, like
sidewalks, travel lanes, street trees, etc.

• Building Standards: Regulations that describe the
features, configuration and functions of the built
environment, and how they relate to the public
realm.

• Administration:  Clear, defined streamlined
application and review process

• Definitions: A illustrated glossary of terms and
images to ensure precise use.



How do we 
do this?
• Craft a Vision: The place

people love.
Kennebunkport’s Historic
Village Area

• Vision Plan is used as the
rough draft that is used to
write the design

• Codify the Vision: Turn the
dimensions of existing
properties into a standard
that can be replicated.



Who uses form-based 
Code/Designs?
Over 700 communities 
nationwide have specific form-
based codes.

• Auburn, ME

• Belfast, ME

• Bridgton, ME

• Cape Cod, MA

• Dover, NH

• Freeport, ME

• Hamden, CT

• Jamestown, RI

• Scarborough, ME



Resource List

• https://formbasedcodes.org/
• https://www.maine.gov/dacf/municipalplanning/technical/form_based_co

des.shtml
• https://nne.planning.org/sections/maine/front-page/form-based-design-

standards-smaller-communities/
• http://greenerprospects.com/PDFs/Simplify_thatCode.pdf

https://formbasedcodes.org/
https://www.maine.gov/dacf/municipalplanning/technical/form_based_codes.shtml
https://nne.planning.org/sections/maine/front-page/form-based-design-standards-smaller-communities/
http://greenerprospects.com/PDFs/Simplify_thatCode.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



T O W N  O F  K E N N E B U N K P O R T, M A I N E 
– INCORPORATED 1653 –

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 
Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470 

Memorandum

To: Board of Selectmen and Laurie Smith, Town Manager 
Fr: John Everett, Fire Chief 
Re: Lease Purchase for Ladder Truck 
Dt: September 1, 2022 

At the 8/11/22 BOS meeting, I came to the Board looking for feedback on a proposal 
to lease purchase $550,000 to make up the difference between what we have in our 
capital apparatus reserve account and the rapidly escalating costs of a ladder truck. 
Most of the Board felt the proposal was worth looking into and had some questions 
that needed answering. There was also an explanation of how purchasing a similar 
truck with Kennebunk would add additional savings. 

The biggest concern was could the FD finalized a truck specification prior to the next 
meeting agenda and have both Towns able to purchase. We have accomplished this 
task. The vehicle comes in at what was projected at the last meeting, $1.45M. This 
figure is after pre-paying discount and the discount on the two-truck purchase 
between the two towns.  

As you recall, significant savings will come from our ability to pre-pay the entire 
amount of the vehicle and from a discount the chosen vendor and manufacturer are 
giving both towns.  

Kennebunk voters had appropriated $1.5M in June for their truck. This morning 
Kennebunk  Fire Rescue decided to purchase a truck manufactured by Sutphen in 
Dublin, Ohio. This is my recommendation for our purchase as well, provided the 
financing is approved. 

There are supporting documents attached that are lease purchase rate sheets from 
Gorham Savings, Androscoggin Savings, and Leasing 2 Inc, the lender that the truck 
manufacturer uses. All three lenders will have a non-appropriation clause in their 
leases. 

It is my recommendation that the Town purchase the Sutphen ladder truck for 
$1.45M after all discounts while financing $550,000 with Androscoggin Savings for 5 
years with annual payments of $121,789.02 at an interest rate of 3.75 fixed. The total 
finance charge for this transaction is $58,945.09. This makes the entire cost of the 
vehicle $1,508,945.09 

The financing breakdown is $900,000 from the FD capital reserve account for 
apparatus, and the remainder is financed through the lease purchase. This will keep 
the annual appropriation to the FD apparatus capital reserve account flat at 
$175,000, as it has been for the last two fiscal years for the 5-year life of the lease 
agreement. 

 

Item 12



30 Lisbon Street 

PO Box 1407 

Lewiston, Maine 04243 

1.800.966.9172 

Androscogginbank.com 

 August 30, 2022 

Town of Kennebunkport 

Attn: Denise Brown, Finance Director 

6 Elm Street  

Kennebunkport, ME 04046

MUNICIPAL LEASE PURCHASE PROPOSAL 

Lessee:       Town of Kennebunkport 

Equipment: One New Fire Truck with associated accessories and equipment (as 

more particularly described in vendor invoices to be provided by the Lessee prior 

to closing). 

Cost of Equipment:  $550,000.00 

Lease Term:              A. 5 Years   B. 7 Years 

Interest Rate:            A. 3.75% (Tax Exempt)   B. 3.75% (Tax Exempt) 

Number of Payments: Five or Seven Annual payments of principal and Interest 

Payment Amount:     A. $121,789.02*   B. $90,135.05*

(*Final payment may vary.) 

First Payment Due:    The first payment of principal and interest shall be due and payable on July 15, 

2023. A proposed closing date of September 27, 2022. This may be changed upon 

request.  

Purchase Option:       One Dollar ($1.00) at end of lease term. 

Prepayment: There are no prepayment penalties. 

Insurance: Prior to delivery of the leased assets, Lessee at its sole cost and 

expense, will provide all-inclusive physical damage and liability 

insurance in the joint names of the Lessee and Lessor, in amounts 

satisfactory to Lessor, and forward proof of said coverage to Lessor. 

Title (if required)      Lessee shall be listed as owner and Lessor listed as lien holder on and all UCC-1 

filing statements.  Lessor will also hold a security interest 

in any lease escrow accounts established by Lessee. 



Non-appropriation:   The lease will contain a non-appropriation clause. 

 

 

Confirmation:            Lessee to confirm that anticipated total borrowings for 2022   

                                     year will not exceed Ten Million dollars ($10,000,000.), making  

                                     the lease “Bank Qualified”.    

 

Type of Lease:            The lease shall be considered a Municipal Lease/Purchase by all  

                                     parties. Lessee is a State or a political subdivision thereof, within  

                                     the meaning of Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.   

 

Advances / Deposits:  If Lessor advances any deposits or pays any invoices prior to  

                                     Delivery and Acceptance of the equipment by Lessee, interest will  

                                     accrue at the above rate on said payments and be due at closing.  

 

Legal Opinion:           Leases greater than One Hundred Thousand dollars ($100,000.00)  

                                     require Lessee to provide an Opinion of Counsel. Said opinion must  

                                     state that the lease represents a valid and binding obligation of the  

                                     lessee and further that the lease is a “qualified tax exempt  

                                     obligation” for the purposes of Section 265 (b) (3) (B) (ii) of the 

                                     Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  

                                     

Financial Data:          Lessee will provide Androscoggin Bank with its most recent  

                                    audited financial statement, current year’s budget, annual report,  

                                    a copy of meeting minutes or Board order approving the transaction,                       

                                    and any other supporting data requested during the term of the lease. 

                                     

Lease Rates:              This Lease request will be closed within 30 days of the original  

                                    proposal date, or the stated rate will be subject to change based on  

                                    public sector rates then existing in the market. 

 

Expiration:                This lease proposal shall expire if not accepted by a duly qualified  

                                    Lessee official by 5:00 PM on September 20, 2022. 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to present this lease proposal for your consideration. If you are in agreement 

with the terms of the proposal, please sign and return it via email. Should you have questions regarding this 

proposal, please contact me at 207-330-0531.  

 

Sincerely, 

 
John Simko, Vice President 

Government Finance   

AWARD / ACKNOWLEDGEMENT (please signed and return via email): 

This proposal Option A____, Option B____, is accepted and this financing is awarded to Androscoggin 

Bank. 

 

_________________________________________ Date: _______________ 

Name & Title  



Note Model Statement

Date Quoted: Aug 30, 2022

Product: Product Not Defined

Interest Method: [1] 365/365 Payments P&I

Note Date: Sep 27, 2022

Maturity Date: Jul 15, 2027

Principal Advance: $550,000.00

Amount Financed: $550,000.00

Finance Charge: $58,945.09

APR: 3.750000%

Total Principal: $550,000.00

Total Interest: $58,945.09

Total of Payments: $608,945.09

Payment Schedule

Description Date Frequency Number Amount

Regular Payment Jul 15, 2023 Annually 4 $121,789.02

Regular Payment Jul 15, 2027 Annually 1 $121,789.01

Page 1 of 1Premier

8/30/2022https://nav7.fiservse.net/CLC_CLC1161/CLC1161.ASPX?Action=NoteCalcModel&SubA...

OPTION A



Amortization Schedule

Principal Interest Principal
Date Description Total Payment P&I Payment Payment Payment Balance

Sep 27, 2022 Beginning Balance 550,000.00

2022 Totals

Jul 15, 2023 Regular Payment 121,789.02 121,789.02 105,345.53 16,443.49 444,654.47

2023 Totals 121,789.02 121,789.02 105,345.53 16,443.49

Jul 15, 2024 Regular Payment 121,789.02 121,789.02 105,068.80 16,720.22 339,585.67

2024 Totals 121,789.02 121,789.02 105,068.80 16,720.22

Jul 15, 2025 Regular Payment 121,789.02 121,789.02 109,054.56 12,734.46 230,531.11

2025 Totals 121,789.02 121,789.02 109,054.56 12,734.46

Jul 15, 2026 Regular Payment 121,789.02 121,789.02 113,144.11 8,644.91 117,387.00

2026 Totals 121,789.02 121,789.02 113,144.11 8,644.91

Jul 15, 2027 Regular Payment 121,789.01 121,789.01 117,387.00 4,402.01

2027 Totals 121,789.01 121,789.01 117,387.00 4,402.01

Grand Total 608,945.09 608,945.09 550,000.00 58,945.09

Page 1 of 1Premier

8/30/2022https://nav7.fiservse.net/CLC_CLC1161/CLC1161.ASPX?Action=NoteCalcReportStatem...

OPTION A



Note Model Statement

Date Quoted: Aug 30, 2022

Product: Product Not Defined

Interest Method: [1] 365/365 Payments P&I

Note Date: Sep 27, 2022

Maturity Date: Jul 15, 2029

Principal Advance: $550,000.00

Amount Financed: $550,000.00

Finance Charge: $80,945.31

APR: 3.750000%

Total Principal: $550,000.00

Total Interest: $80,945.31

Total of Payments: $630,945.31

Payment Schedule

Description Date Frequency Number Amount

Regular Payment Jul 15, 2023 Annually 6 $90,135.05

Regular Payment Jul 15, 2029 Annually 1 $90,135.01

Page 1 of 1Premier

8/30/2022https://nav7.fiservse.net/CLC_CLC1161/CLC1161.ASPX?Action=NoteCalcModel&SubA...

OPTION B



Amortization Schedule

Principal Interest Principal
Date Description Total Payment P&I Payment Payment Payment Balance

Sep 27, 2022 Beginning Balance 550,000.00

2022 Totals

Jul 15, 2023 Regular Payment 90,135.05 90,135.05 73,691.56 16,443.49 476,308.44

2023 Totals 90,135.05 90,135.05 73,691.56 16,443.49

Jul 15, 2024 Regular Payment 90,135.05 90,135.05 72,224.55 17,910.50 404,083.89

2024 Totals 90,135.05 90,135.05 72,224.55 17,910.50

Jul 15, 2025 Regular Payment 90,135.05 90,135.05 74,981.91 15,153.14 329,101.98

2025 Totals 90,135.05 90,135.05 74,981.91 15,153.14

Jul 15, 2026 Regular Payment 90,135.05 90,135.05 77,793.73 12,341.32 251,308.25

2026 Totals 90,135.05 90,135.05 77,793.73 12,341.32

Jul 15, 2027 Regular Payment 90,135.05 90,135.05 80,711.00 9,424.05 170,597.25

2027 Totals 90,135.05 90,135.05 80,711.00 9,424.05

Jul 15, 2028 Regular Payment 90,135.05 90,135.05 83,720.13 6,414.92 86,877.12

2028 Totals 90,135.05 90,135.05 83,720.13 6,414.92

Jul 15, 2029 Regular Payment 90,135.01 90,135.01 86,877.12 3,257.89

2029 Totals 90,135.01 90,135.01 86,877.12 3,257.89

Grand Total 630,945.31 630,945.31 550,000.00 80,945.31

Page 1 of 1Premier

8/30/2022https://nav7.fiservse.net/CLC_CLC1161/CLC1161.ASPX?Action=NoteCalcReportStatem...

OPTION B

















Proposal Date:

Equipment Description:

Commencement Date:

Equipment Cost:

Lessee Down Payment:

Amount Financed:

Lease Term:

First Payment Date:

Payment Frequency:

Lease Rate:

Payment Amount:

Payment Factor:

Qualifications:

Financing by: Leasing 2, Inc.

Contact: Brad Meyers

Phone: 813-258-9888 x12

Email: bmeyers@leasing2.com

Web: www.leasing2.com

5. Credit Approval and Documentation: This is a proposal only, and does not represent a commitment to lease.  This financing is subject to credit

review and approval and execution of mutually acceptable documentation, including the opinion of lessee's counsel opining that the agreement is legal,

valid and binding, obligation of Lessee.

3. Financial Reporting:     All city, county and tax districts (including fire districts) will be expected to provide GAAP audited financial reports.  All non-

for profit corporations (vfd's) will be expected to provide IRS 990 federal tax returns.  If you do not maintain these types of financial reports, please 

contact us to discuss.

b) Closing Costs:  There will be no up-front costs of any kind charged by Lessor including closing costs, points, administrative costs, etc.

Your attorney may charge you to review the lease documents and complete the opinion letter required with our lease documentation.

4. Vendor Payable / Escrow  Account (where applicable):  In the event that the truck(s) and/or equipment are not ready to be delivered, proceeds of

this lease will be held in a vendor payable account until delivery/acceptance.  This is a non-interest bearing account to Lessee.

a) Rate Expiration:    Due to the current increasing rate markets, this proposal is valid under the following circumstances:

•The award is received within 14 days of the Proposal Date.

•The transaction is closed within 45 days off the Proposal Date.

        If you are unable to award within 14 days, please contact us prior to your decision meeting date and we will provide a current proposal.  

$1,450,000$1,450,000

(1) Sutphen Aerial

7 Years7 Years 5 Years

Annual

September 25, 2022

$550,000 $550,000 $1,450,000 $1,450,000

$1,450,000 $1,450,000

0.23039

$128,399.14 $95,197.57

LEASE FINANCING PROPOSAL

Dingee Machine, Co.
Requested by

Presented To (As Lessee)

Larry Dingee

Representing

Town of Kennebunkport, ME

 Option 1  Option 2  Option 3  Option 4

9/25/2024

5 Years

0.23345

3.98% 3.98% 3.63%

Annual

$900,000

0.17028

3.63%

2. Type of Lease:  This is a lease-purchase type of financing.  After all the lease payments are made, Lessee will own the equipment without further

cost.

$334,066.37 $246,910.36

0.17309

9/25/2024

August 31, 2022

$900,000 $0 $0

AnnualAnnual

9/25/2024 9/25/2024

c) Fixed Rates:  Rates for ten (10) years and under are fixed for the entire term.  Terms over ten years have a one time rate adjustment after

ten (10) years to the then current interest rates for the remaining term.

1. Pricing: This is a lease proposal for the payment stream(s) indicated above.  If any of the information identified above are not correct, please advise

us so that we can determine if a new proposal is required.  Other important elements of this proposal are:



REQUEST TO PROCEED:

Proposal date: Option Chosen: _________ (where applicable)

Upcoming Governing Body meeting date for lease approval: ____________________________________

Name of Lessee

_____________________________________ ____________________________

Authorized Signature Date

_____________________________________ ____________________________

Printed Name Of Authorized Signature  Title

_____________________________________ ____________________________

Contact Name  (If Different Than Contact Phone

Authorized Signature)

_____________________________________ Last month of your budget year?_______________________

Contact E-Mail Address

Fire and EMS Station Financing

If you have a new fire/ems station or a renovation of a current station planned, keep Leasing 2 in mind for 

financing needs.  We offer aggressive long term rates and our experience financing stations will make the 

process efficient.   

** Important:  A Resolution will be required with the lease contract **    

In the event that you require board action to sign this proposal,

please call us so that we may forward the preferred form for the meeting. 

August 31, 2022

Town of Kennebunkport, ME

 Please complete the above information and fax or email all pages of the proposal to

813-258-9333 / bmeyers@leasing2.com

When you are ready to proceed with Leasing 2 towards finalizing this lease financing arrangement, please indicate so by signing below and 

completing the requested information.   We will immediately email you our application.   Thank you for your confidence and consideration.

Note that on the date of this proposal, rates were trending up. If your final decision is more than 14 days from the 

date of this proposal we suggest you contact us before your decision meeting for an updated quote.

Rates Trending Up

http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/
http://www.firetruckleasing.com/fire-ems-station-financing/


Current Bid Price

Option 1 the discount

25% would be $14,711.57 $1,479,797.43

Option 2 the discount

50% would be $29,423.15 $1,465,085.85

Option 3 the discount

75% would be $44,134.72 $1,450,374.28

Option 4 For a full prepayment, we offer a discount  of

100% $1,435,662.71

NOTE: 

9/2/2022

Prepayment Discount Options

For The

Kennebunkport ME

For a prepayment in the amount of $747,254.50

for a total selling price of  . . . . 

for a total selling price of  . . . . 

$1,494,509.00

For a prepayment in the amount of $373,627.25

For a prepayment in the amount of $1,120,881.75

for a total selling price of  . . . . 

Any remaining balance would be due at the time of delivery.  

for a final selling price of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

For any option above, the prepayment would be due within 30

days of contract signing in order to receive the discounts listed. 

$58,846.29



SUTPHEN CORPORATION 
6450 Eiterman Road  |  Dublin, OH 43016  |  1-800-848-5860 

PROPOSAL 
TO THE: 
Kennebunkport Fire Department 
Attn: Chief Everett 
32 North Main Street 
Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 

   DATE:   September 1, 2022

We hereby propose and agree to furnish the following firefighting equipment upon your 
acceptance of this proposal: 

One (1) Sutphen Heavy Duty 100’ Mid-Mount Aerial Tower (SPH100) Complete 

and Delivered for the Total Sum of  ........................................... $1,494,509.00 

The unit shall be manufactured completely in accordance to the following proposal and 
delivered in approximately 20-22 months from the date of the contract signing or purchase 
order, subject to delays from all causes beyond our control. 

This proposal shall be valid until September 14, 2022. If the contract or purchase order is 
not received within this proposed duration, we reserve the right to extend, withdraw, or 
modify our proposal, including pricing, delivery times, and prepayment discounts as 
applicable. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Larry Dingee 

Larry Dingee 
Dingee Machine Company 
Authorized Representative for Sutphen Corporation 
603.542.9682 



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



T O W N  O F  K E N N E B U N K P O R T, M A I N E 
– INCORPORATED 1653 –

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 
Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470 

Memorandum

To: Board of Selectmen and Laurie Smith, Town Manager 
Fr: John Everett, Fire Chief 
Re: Boiler Replacement at the Port Village 
Dt: August 30, 2022 

On July 20, 2022, a call was placed to Garrett Pillsbury for a service call for no heat 
or hot water at the station. A repair tech arrived and diagnosed the problem and 
ordered the parts to make repairs. They returned to install the parts a few weeks 
later and discovered that the boiler had much bigger problems. The original repair 
was to replace the flame tubes and other related parts. It was discovered that the 
unit was leaking water internally and had ruined the boiler. 

The boiler is original to the building, built in 2002, and is beyond repair. I had multiple 
vendors look at the boiler, and they had the same opinion. Attached to this memo 
are quotes to replace this boiler from Garrett Pillsbury, Branch Brook, and Atlantic 
Comfort Solutions. Two of the vendors gave multiple choices of what they could do. 

Garrett Pillsbury only gave a single option which was to replace what is currently 
there with a new model of the same size. Both Branch Brook and Atlantic gave us 
more options. One option they both gave is a redundant system where two smaller 
boilers, wall-hung type, are used in series. This gives us some security in the event 
one boiler fails; the other can maintain a temperature of 50-60 degrees. This could 
save money in the long run by not having to call anyone in after hours on a holiday to 
fix a single boiler. 

It is my opinion that we award the boiler replacement to Branch Brook Fuels option 
number 3 for $24,555.02. Choosing this option gives us redundancy and is from a 
respected area vendor. 

We can take money from the Fire capital budget dedicated to buildings from a 
building project that did not happen. The money from this account represents the 
entire account. The remainder of the money I carried forward from FY22’s budget. I 
will still have $2,944.98 of the $13,000.00 that was carried over available. 

Capital Buildings Acct. Port Village  $14,500.00 
Carry Forward from FY22  $10,055.02 

Total $24,555.02

Item 13







8/29/22 

Kennebunkport Fire Department 

32 North Street   

Kennebunkport, ME 

Atlantic Comfort Systems, Inc. is pleased to quote the following work. 

• Provide & Install Burham Gas Boiler.

• Remove and demolition of existing system.

• Provide and install new zone pumps.

• Tie in all hydronic pipping.

• Tie in gas pipping.

• Flue venting.

• One-year complete warranty.

• Start up test of systems.

Project Price: $ 21,240.00 

  PurePro Trio Gas Boiler Option:  $ 21,985.00 

  Two NTI Gas Wall Hung Boilers:  $ 28,745.00 

   Note: Exclude adequacies of existing systems, pipping, radiant, electrical, chimney, etc. 

Terms are 25% of contract value upon acceptance, thereafter progress billing until completion of 

project, balance upon completion net 10 days. If not paid as indicated a 1.5% monthly service charge 

on the overdue balance will be applied plus any legal fees for collection. 

   Respectfully submitted, 

Matthew Tuller 

Vice President  

Customer Acceptance________________________________________ Date______________ 

Atlantic Comfort

Systems, Inc.

Mechanical Contractors



To: Chief Jay Everett  

RE: Boiler Replacement at Kport Village Fire Station 

Date: 8/11/2022 

We will supply and install one new propane fired hot water boiler to serve your home. 

This includes the following: 

• We will remove and dispose of the existing hot water boiler.

• We will supply and install one new HTP propane boiler Model: ELX400-FBN

• We will re-pipe the area around the boiler location as needed,  then reconnect to

the existing piping that serves the building.

• We will install a new Boiler Pump with iso flanges.

• This boiler will provide hot water and heating for the existing zones.

• We will install low voltage control wiring for the new boiler.

• We will install new vent piping from the boiler to the exterior.

• All work is to be performed during regular business hours.

• Price valid for 30 days

• Price assumes tax exemption on all equipment and materials.

Total Cost:   $31,670.00 

***Payment terms: 30% down upon order with net due 25 days after completion. 

Customer Signature: _______________________________    Date: _________________ 

Tom Littlefield 

Sales Person & Project Coordinator 

Garrett Pillsbury Plumbing & Heating 
119 York Street  
Kennebunk, ME  04043 

207.985.2130 



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT 
Application for Boards, Committees & Commissions 

To the Town Manager: 

I hereby request to be considered for membership to the following board(s) and/or 
committee(s): (If more than one, please indicate your preference: 1,2,3…) 

□ Administrative Code Committee
□ Board of Assessment Review □ Planning Board
□ Budget Board □ Shade Tree Committee
□ Cape Porpoise Pier Advisory Committee □ Shellfish Conservation Committee
□ Cemetery Committee □ Solid Waste Committee
□ Conservation Commission □ Zoning Board of Appeals
□ Government Wharf Committee □ Wastewater Advisory Committee
□ Growth Planning Committee
□ Kennebunk River Committee
□ Lighting Committee

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Signature of Applicant Date 

Preliminary Information 

Name (Print): _____________________________________________________ 

Residence Address: ________________________________ Phone:   _____________ 

Business Address: ________________________________ Phone:   _____________ 

Mailing Address: _____________________________________________________ 

  (if different)   _____________________________________________________ 

E-mail Address: _____________________________________________________ 

x   Recreation Committee

s/ Jamie L Mitchell   August 30, 2022

Jamie L Mitchell

4 Back Harbor Rd., Unit 2 (207) 205-3539

PO Box 425, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046

mitchell.jamielynn@gmail.com

Item 14



Membership in community organizations: 

Organization Dates Activities 

_________________________  _________ __________________________________ 

_________________________  _________ __________________________________ 

_________________________  _________ __________________________________ 

_________________________  _________ __________________________________ 
Do you have any skills, experience, or training you would like to mention? 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

What is your reason for wanting to serve on this board or committee? 
__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

Are you registered to vote in Kennebunkport?   Please check one:     □ Yes     □ No 

Please return the completed application to: Town Manager, 6 Elm St., P.O. Box 566, 
Kennebunkport, ME  04046.  You will be contacted upon receipt.  

KHHT 2018 - 2021    Board of Directors/Trustees

KKAYCA Youth Cheer 2016 - Current   President, Head Coach

Experienced in event planning, fundraising

Certified NFHS cheerleading youth coach, First Aid, Concussion Management and Heat 
Exhaustion 

My daughter and I have utilized recreation services since the summer before K (2015) , 
continuing on with recent enrollment in the Outdoor Adventure camps.  I think the recreation 
program is essential to our town and the families it supports and I am looking forward to 
contributing to its success.

x



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 15









 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 16









 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 17






















